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Independent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements

Honorable Mayor and City Council
Town of Ransom Canyon, Texas
24 Lee Kitchens Dr.

Ransom Canyon, TX 78366-2200

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Ransom
Canyon, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Ransem Canyon, Texas as of
September 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Town of Ransom Canyon,
Texas and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter,
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinions, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgment made by a reascnable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

« Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, identified as required supplementary
information, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financia! statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Ransom Canyon, Texas' basic financial statements. The accompanying other
schedules listed in the table of contents as Other Supplementary Information are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America.  In our opinion, this information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 3,
2022, on our consideration of the Town of Ransom Canyon, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Ransom Canyon, Texas’ internal contral over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Town of Ransom Canyon, Texas' internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,
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Terry & King, CPAs, P.C.

Lubbock, Texas
November 3, 2022
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the Town of Ransom Canyon’s financial performance
provides an overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2022. Please read this in conjunction with the City’s financial statements, which follow this
section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The City's net position increased as a result of this year's operations. While the net
position of our business-type activities increased by $213,576 or 6%, net position of
our governmental activities increased by $35,768 or 4%.

¢ During the year, the City had expenses that were $212,294 more than the $1,087,616
generated in tax and other revenues for governmental programs before transfers.

¢ In the City’s business type activities, revenues increased $180,243 to $1,537,971 (or
13%). Charges for services increased $142,339 (11%), property taxes decreased
$13,776 (13%), and interest income increased $20,911 (425%). Operating expenses
increased $151,675 to $1,076,333.

o The General Fund reported a deficit this year of $230,552 prior to inter-fund transfers
in of $248,062.

e The resources available for appropriation were $58,997 more than budgeted for the
General Fund. Expenditures for the General Fund were less than the budgeted
amounts by $67,933.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances. Fund financial
statements start on page 14. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these
services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending.
Fund financial statements aiso report the City’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements by providing information about the City’s most significant
funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which
the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.



Reporting the City as a Whole -- The Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities

Our analysis of the City as a whole begins on page 6. One of the most important questions
asked about the City’s finances is, “Is the City as a whole better off or worse as a result
of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities
report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps
answer this question. These statements include «// assets and liabilities using the accrual
basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net position and the changes to its position. You
can think of the City’s net position—the differences between assets and liabilities—as
one way to measure the City’s financial health. Over time, increases or decreases in the
City’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as
changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s roads, to assess the
overall health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into
two kinds of activities:

s (Governmental activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here,
including the ambulance, fire, public works, and parks departments, and general
administration. Property taxes, franchise taxes, and state and federal grants
finance most of these activities.

* Business-type activities — The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover the
cost of certain services it provides. The City’s water. gas, sewer and garbage
services are reported here.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds — Fund Financial Statements

QOur analysis of the City’s major funds begins on page 10. The fund financial statements
begin on page 14 and provide detailed information about the most significant funds—not the
City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond
covenants. At times a city council may establish other funds to help it control and manage
money for particular purposes. such as special projects or to show that it is meeting legal
responsibilities for using certain Federal or State grants. Currently the City’s governmental
funds consist of the General Fund and a special revenue fund to account for grant funds. The
City’s two kinds of funds — governmental and proprictary — use different accounting
approaches.



o Governmental funds-—Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental
funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances
left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an
accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all
other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The Governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps
you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent
in the near future to finance the City's programs. We describe the relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets

and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliation on Exhibits
C-1R and C-3.

o Proprietary funds—When the City charges customers for the services it provides—
whether to outside customers or to other units of the City—these services are
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same
way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Activities. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds)
are the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide
statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for
proprietary funds.

THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The City’s combined net position was $4.386,635. Our following analysis focuses on the net
assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table 2) of the City’s government and business-
type activities.



%9 162 LY G998t ¥ %9 JZLEBTE 06905 £ et vOB £F8 ZEL'648
%S| 966 L09 BLZ'669 33 0r9'046 FESEGH %9 wpeZefl  (9Ze'00e]
%REY- SLLEET £8L'EEL %Er SLLEET £aLeeL %0 S =

%e 085'662'C ELTPSE'E %EL 2L6'880°7 S51'898'T LAl B0O990Z'L 850681t
%6E SBE 'G5 268 £er %GEPL 7690 £8ELLE B2 £04 ¥EZ 506 991
%9, 6ZLOHL DCR ¥OZ %SH 78907 12E'BE WL 1PFGE 606991
%001 95761 290'642 %00t - 790642 %00L  BSTEEL

%0 BLEBEY G 187SSP'S Rt ¥rD Pe6 ¥ §GL PR WEE GO PG 62/ 0E9
%004 000504y €ZL 068y %004 000'S0Lw 00DSiS Y %0 £2L°612
%rZ 000'0EL PEL'09L % 00002+ 000’08} %0 2 PELOE
%3l 15098 ore'Ly %L1 5859 89°L w5l 99r'62 £56'CE
%EE" $08'2LE 656'PE %pE- 0£1'66 165'69 %L PEO'BLY zoe'eaz

%S 06Z'er 08E'S %S 06Z'eY 06E'SY %0 = -

%zl PV Wwo'g %l@ 866 va0'L %9 §i8'9 156'0
%bll 1ELES SL9LlL W%hL 20y B9 BSGZZ %yiZ__ BLLPL £60'65
%BE 0692CH ZISLL %" 069 TH T T %0 B oF0G
%l Lrr'OL £01'09L %05 zHL'5S 80041 wOrZ  BTLFL L1008
%l - ¥E0' 16 £2V'L8 %" 97491 15E 9t %t BOERL 2B0'S9

— - -

%9 260'PZR6 90Z Zer QL %G 6ZE0GE 8 1426548 %E | £9.E/P'L  GEG999 L
%S CiZ6Z5¢ BLZGBE %52 GEOCZE T €9L°206'2 %PT 09907 L SLSZErL
%00V - oez's2) %0 E E %001 - {ogZ'62)
%00t & R %0 J - %O0L - LPE'OrE

%S S0 1E1L)  (Beerest’l) [{=ThAGH] (525°61) %v eBe'zzL'y)  {€6z 2911}

%8 EB5OVTH 651°L8€') %SPZ  BEO'EL LZP'6L %E PIG LT ZELZST)

%E {6r0'6OE'C)  (BOP'PEP'E) %E (ero'secel  (@ov'ver'e) %0 - -

%SH &71'508'P ¥56'645'C %G1 6Y1'598'F ¥GE'GLS'S %0 0 o

%E 902'z8p'Z)  (pE'2PG'2) %0 S J %E 90L28v'2)  (GrasvsZ)

%E LPPESD'E EOG'6ELE %0 - 0 %E 1PPES0E  COYBELE

%G (96+'916) (28870480 %ge  (erRel (e0g'se) %S (eso'vasl  (vED'ZEB)

%0 66526071 BBG'Z69'L %0 8ZY'BiE gZree %0 IVBLEL  LOLELE'L
%00L 151'ovS YT 5T %0014 51°98 a1 %0 - S
%SG otZ'or 1BLLL %0 O [1-:3+74 WO oez'ay 0EZ'9F
%y BLE PEC 9 5269209 E" ¥99'220'9 805 258'S %GE- GG | JOC 0P PLL

% 580 651 695 591 %l 06T Evi vELZEL %801 S6LG1 SEa'ee
%81 THLIYEY PZE'SE0'P %81~ VL' LvE'y yZECH0'r %0 - -

%OE zeo'sal’L 555} %85 Z99'%E0°) 066'2€9'L %y QR IET 58S LrL

TOUETS e 02 e e fd0A U e T
afejuaniad abejuasieg afiejuaciad
120 L SeninRY SamAIDY
adf-ssausng [BIUBLULIBAOS)

UONSO 19N S,UCAUED) WOSUBY JO UMD}
I 8dE L

UOIISO 19N IB10L
PEISUISBIUNE
BOIASS 1G3P JO) pIRUISEY
slasse [ENdED Ul JUSLNSaAUl 18N
uamsod 19N

$82N0SBY JO SMOLUL PaLIBA( [BIOL
8340 7 UOISURG - SMOY| PALIRIECT
$PUN UBJS) » SMOU| PRIRJAC

$29Un088Y JO SMOBU| PBLSIA

SBRYIGRIL JUSLNIUCL (101
Jead BUO UBL) 2J0W U1 NG
Jeah 8U0 UM NG
ANKEN 8340 RI0L
Aupgery uoisuad 19N
120 o1 80
$IUISQY pelesuadwad

-S3IH)KQe)| JUBLNIUAN

SONIgEI| JUBLND [BI05
aeiey 15BN
s|qefed Sungady
sanqer LN

S30UNDSBY JO SMORIND PELSBE IBIOL

$)985Y [B1I0L
518588 JWALINTUOU 810
wawidinba g aumitLing pases|
uonenadsp PaleINWNIIe $587
wawdinb3 g aunnung pasea
wawdinba g amuwny ‘Uciereidep
pargnwnIde 591
wawdinb3 ¢ amikung
swaisks ANnn ‘uoners:dep
paleINWNIoE 5587
swaisig Anmn
SINPINISEIUN P S188J)5 UCHBEAMSD
pAIENWNIoE §537
BUMDNUISELU) PUB SI1G3NS
sBuppng uonerasdsp
PBlEINWAICE 5587
sawaraxdws| g sbuping
$58.60.d Ul LONDIUISUOD
pue
S)asse JuaLnUoN
$1955€ JUBUND |BIOL
S3|QRAI3SGY
palouisay - suawsasur Aielodua )
Jueq uIyseD
S1985E lHaLUND

(1-v aqe) 8a8) ZZ0Z Of Mqweldss e GEH'O6E v Sem uoised Jou pauquxsd $.AND Buy uoisod jaN

FTOHM ¥ SV ALID FHL JO SISATYNY TYIONYNIA



[

The net position of the City's governmental activilies increased 4% ($843,964 compared

to $879,732). Unrestricted net position - the part of net position that can be used to finance
day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling
legislation, or other legal requirements - changed from $(362,644) at September 30, 2021 to
$(306,326) at the end of this year. The net position of the City's business-type activities
increased 6%, from $3,293,327 to $3,506,903.

Table A-2
Changes i the Town of Ransom Canyon's Net Posilion

Governmenial Business-lype
Aclivities Activilies Tolal
Percenlage Percentage Percentage
2022 2021 Change 2022 21 Change 20922 2021 Change
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services 23,664 20,890 3% 1,386,165 1,243,826 1% 1409829 1,264.716 1%

Grants & Conlribulions 63,072 109,675 -42% . 0% 63,072 109.67% -42%
General Revenues:

Property Taxes 863,028 845419 2% 95,206 108,982 -13% 958,234 954,421 0%

Nonproperty Taxes 64,039 60,006 7% . 0% 64.039 60,006 %

Invesiment Earnings - 0% 25,81 4,920 425% 25,831 4,920 425%

RV Storage 15,5680 20,305 -23%

Other 58.223 34.258 70% 30.769 - 0% 88.992 34.268 160%
Tolal Revenues 1.087.616  1.090.563 0% 1.537.9M11 1,357,728 13% 2609997  2.428.006 7%
Expenses:

General govemment 414,677 420644 -3% - - 0% 414,617 429,644 -3%

Operations 165,667 226,843 -21% - - 0% 165,667 226,843 -21%

City Court 4778 1,934 147% - - 0% 4778 1.934 147%

Police 358,767 319,292 12% - - 0% 358,767 319,292 12%

Fire 104,958 74,796 40% . . 0% 104,958 74,796 40%

Streets 202,227 194 688 4% o - 0% 202,227 194,688 4%

Library 36,409 35012 4% - - 0% 36,409 35,012 4%

Emergency operaticns 6,785 3,990 70% - - 0% 6,785 3.990 T0%

nlerest on Long-Term Debt 5,642 - 100%

Water and Sewer - - (] 1,076,333 924.658 16% 1,076,333 924,658 16%
Tolal Expenses 1.299910 1,286,150 1% 1.076.333 924,658 16% 2,370,601 2.210.857 7%
Excess {Deficiency) Before

Other Resources, Uses &

Transfers 1212.294) {195.616) 9% 461,638 433070 7% 239,396 217,149 10%
Transfers In (Quty 248,062 141,290 76% (248062}  {141.280)  76% 0%
Increase (Decrease) in

Net Posilion 35,768 (54,326} 166% 213,576 201,780 -27% 239,396 217.149 10%

Net Position - Beginning 843.964 £98.290 -6% 3.293.,327 3,001,647 10% 4.137.291 3.899.837 6%
Net Pasition - Ending 879,732 B43.964 4% 3.506.903  3.293.327 5% 4386635 4.137.291 6%

The City's total revenues were $2,609,997. A significant portion, 5§3%, of the City's total
revenue comes from the water and sewer operations. Revenues available to fund
governmental activities consist of property taxes (79%), non-property taxes (6%), charges
for services (2%), grants and contributions (6%) and other (5%).



The total cost of all programs and services was $2.370,601; 45% of these costs were for
utilities production and administration expenses. Expenses for governmental activities
consisted of costs for general administration (32%), operations {13%), courts and police
(28%), streets and services (15%), fire department (8%), and library (3%).

Governmental Activities

Revenues for the City’'s governmental activities remained approximately the same, while
total expenses also remained approximately the same.

Property tax rates decreased slightly from $0.611910 per $100 valuation to $0.610090
per $100 valuation. The ad valorem tax levy for the previous fiscal year was
$951,861, compared to $952,956 for the current year. Total tax collections increased
1%, from $947,755 in the prior year to $958,981 in the current year.

Grant revenues decreased $46,603. In the prior year, the city received $51,248 in
grant funds to reimburse for COVID supplies. Lubbock County contributed $40.627
for the purchase of fire department equipment and supplies.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $1,299,910. As shown in the
Statement of Activities, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these
activities through tax collections was $863,028 because some of the costs were paid
by those who directly benefited from the programs ($23,664) and by nonproperty
taxes ($64,039).

Business-type Activities

Revenues of the City’s business-type activities (see table A-2) increase by 13% ($1,357.728
to $1,537,971) and expenses increased by 16% ($924,658 to $1,076,333).



THE CITY’S FUNDS

As the City completed the fiscal year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance
sheet on Exhibit C-1) reported a combined fund balance of $123,041, which is an increase
from the prior year’s total of $105,531. The following items effecting fund balance should
be noted:

¢ In the prior year, revenues were less than expenditures by $108,087 prior to transfers.
In the current year, revenues were less than expenditures by $230,552 prior to
transfers. The general fund received $248,062 as a transfer from the enterprise funds
in the current year.

e The revenues in the general fund increased approximately 1% from the prior period
and expenses for the general fund increased approximately 35% from the prior period.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the City’s budget several times. Even
with these adjustments, actual revenues were $58,997 more than budgeted amounts and
expenditures were $67,933 less than final budget amounts.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

At the end of 2022, the City had $12,625,576 invested in a broad range of capital assets,
including fire equipment, buildings. furniture and equipment, and utilities facilities (see Table

A-3). This amount represents a net increase (including additions and deductions) of
$1,155,832 from last year.

Table A-3
Fixed Assets

Governmental Balance Deletions/ Balance
Activilies: 10-1-21 Additions  Reclassifications  9-30-22
Land $ 46,230 - - 46,230
Buildings 634,277 - - 634,277
Streets & Infrastructure 3,053,441 86,062 - 3,139,503
[inprovements 744,884 - - 744,884
Furniture & Equipment 1,217.524 40,208 - 1,257,732
Right to Use Equipment 20,615 325,726 - 346,341
Accumulated Depreciation __(4.489,748) (186.704) - {4.676.452)

Net Capital Assets $ 1227223  $(265.292) 3 e $ 14925135
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Business-Type Balance Deletions/ Balance

Activities: 10-1-21 Additions  Reclassifications 9-3(-22
Land $ - $ 25551 % - $ 25,551
Construction in Progress 546,157 329,810 (418,718) 457,249
Buildings&

Improvements $ 318,428 - - 318,428
Water & Sewer System 4,865,149 292.087 418,718 5,575,954
Furniture & Equipment 23.039 56,388 - 79,427
Accumulated Depreciation (3,430,108) _(123.738) - (3.553.846)
Net Capital Assets $ 2322665 $ 580.098 $ - $2.902.763

More detailed information about the City’s capital assets is presented in the notes to the
financial statements.

Debt

A municipal government can finance activities such as capital improvements and acquisitions
through general tax bonds or revenue bonds. Additionally, a government may purchase items
through the use of leases. Short-term financing is available in the form of time warrants with
a financial institution.

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended September 30, 2022 are as follows:

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Governmental Balance Increases Decrease Balance One Year
Activities:
Leases $ 20615 $ 290,440 $ 4,598 $ 306,457 5 30,734
Compensated Absences 6,575 382 - 6,957
Net Pension Liability 418,634 - 135,272 283,362 -
Net OPEB Liability 29 486 4633 146 33,953 -
Total governmental activities $_475.280 $..2954585 £.140.016 $_630729 £30734
Due
Beginning Ending Within
Business-Type Balance Increases Decrease Balance Qne Year
Aclivities:
Certificates of Obligation $ 4,835,000 $ - $ 130,000 $ 4,705,000 $ 130,000
Compensated Absences 599 485 - 1,084 -
Net Pension Liability 99,170 - 33,573 65,597 -
Net OPEB Liability 6.585 1,138 36 7,687 -
Total governmental activities $4.941,354 § 1623 $163.609 54779 368 $130,000

More detailed information about the City’s long-term obligations is presented in the notes to
the financial statements.



ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City’s elected officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2023 budget,
tax rates, and fees. Factors considered include the current economy, property tax values and
the needs of the City in the coming year. The Council has adopted tax rates, budgets and set
fees accordingly.

If these estimates are realized, the City’s budgetary general fund fund balance is expected to
increase slightly by the close of 2023.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors
with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the City Administrator at the City’s office located in Ransom Canyon,
Texas.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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EXHIBIT A-1

TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2022

Primary Govemment

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Cash in Bank $ 141585 § 1633950 § 1,775535
Cash in Bank - restricted - 4,085,824 4,085,824
Accounts Receivable-Utilities, net - 132,734 132,734
Other Receivables 31473 - 31,473
Due from Other Governments - - -
Taxes Receivable, Net 1,362 - 1,362
Noncurrent Assets:
Land 46,230 25,551 71,781
Caonstruction in Progress S 457,249 457,249
Streets and Infrastructure 591,658 - 591,658
Buildings & Improvements, net 447127 278,625 725,752
Utility Systems & Equipment, net - 2,081,486 2,081,486
Furniture & Equipment, net 90,439 59,852 150,291
Right to Use Equipment 317,061 - 317,061
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1666935 § 8755271 $ 10,422,206

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferred Outflows - Pension $ 56,268 § 14,357 % 70,625
Deferred Qutflows - OPEB 8,824 1,974 10,798
TOTAL DEFERRED QUTFLOWS CF RESOURCES $ 65002 § 16,331 § 81,423
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 5 50,017 § 110,086 $ 160,103
Accrued Interest Payable 5,040 12,472 17,512
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Compensated Absences 6,957 1,084 8,041
Customer Deposits - 45,380 45,390
Net Pension Liability 283,362 65,597 348,959
Net OPEB Liability 33,953 7,687 41,640
Due within one year 30,734 130,000 160,734
Due in more than one year 275723 4,575,000 4,850,723
Total Liabilities 685,786 4,947,316 5,633,102
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Grant Funds - 279,062 279,062
Deferred Inflows - Pension 162,810 37,588 200,498
Deferred Inflows - OPEB 3,599 733 4,332
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3 166,509 % 317,383 § 483,892
NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets 1,186,058 2,368,155 3,554,213
Restricted for debt service - 133,183 133,183
Unrestricted (306,326) 1,005,565 695,239
Total Net Position $ 879732 § 3506903 $ 4,386,635

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT B-1

TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended Seplember 30, 2022

Net (Expense} Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position
Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for  Grants and Grants and  Govemmental Business-type
Eunclions/Program Expenses Services Contributions Contributions _ Activities Activities Total
Government Activities:
General Govermnment $ 414677 § 17,969 3 $ - §  (396,708) - (396,708}
Operations 165,667 - - (165,667) - (165,667)
City Court 4,778 5,695 - 917 - 917
Public Safety - Police Department 358,767 - - (358,767) - {358,767)
Public Safety - Fire Department 104,958 - 15127 40,627 (49,204} - (49,204)
Public Works - Sireet Departrnent 202,227 - - (202,227} - {202,227)
Library 36,409 - 7.318 - (29,091} - (29,001}
Emergency Operations 6,785 - - (6,785) - (6.785)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 5,642 - - (5.642} - (5,642)
Total Government Activith 1,289,910 23,664 22.445 40.627 (1.213,174) - (1.213,174)
Business-type Activities
Waler, Sewer, and Sanitation 1,076,333 1,386,165 - - 309,832 309,832
Total Business-type Activities 1,076,333 1,386,165 - - 309,832 309,832
Total Primary Government 2,376.243 1,409,829 22,445 40,627 {1.213.174) 309.832 (903,342)
General Revenues
Property Taxes, Levied for General Purpose 863,028 - 863,028
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Servic - 95,206 95,206
Nonproperty Taxe: 64,039 - 64,039
RV Storage 15,590 - 15,590
Investment Earnings - 25,831 25,831
Miscellaneous 58,223 - 58,223
Insurance Recoverie: - 30,769 30,769
Transfers ___ 248,062 (248062) -
Total General Revenue _1.248,942 (96.256) 1,152,686
Change in Net Assels 35,768 213,576 249,344
Net Position -- Beginning 843,964 3,293,327 4,137,291
Net Position -- Ending $ 879732 $ 3,506,903 $ 4,386,635

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this slatement.



TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

BALANCE SHEET -- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash

Taxes Receivable, net

Other Receivables

Due from Other Governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

JOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
~RESQURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

General
Fund

$ 141,685
1,362
31,473

$ 174420

50,017
_.90.017

1,362

1,362

123,041

123,041

$ 174420

EXHIBIT C-1

Total
Governmental
Funds

$ 141,585
1,362
31,473

$ 174420

50,017
50,017

1,362
1,362

123,041
123,041

3 174,420
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EXHIBIT C-1R

TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2022

Total Fund Balances -- Governmental Funds Balance Sheet % 123,041

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets (A-1)
are different because:

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and therefore are unavailable in the funds 1,362

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. 1,492,515

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. These liabilities consist of:
Accrued vacation payable (6,957)
Accrued interest payable {5,040)

Leases Payable (306.457)
(318,454)

Included in the items related to noncurrent assets is the recognition of the City's
proportionate share of the net pension liability required by GASB 68 in the
amount of $283,362, a deferred resource outflow related to pension in the

amount of $56,268, and a deferred resource inflow of $162,810. This resulted in
a decrease in net position by $390,004. (390,004)

Included in the items related to noncurrent liabilities is the recognition of the City's
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability required by GASB 75 in the
amount of $33,953, a deferred resource outflow related to OPEB in the
amount of $8,824, and a deferred resource inflow related to OPEB in the
amount of $3,599. This resulted in a decrease in net position by $28,728. (28,728)

Net Position of Governmental Activities -- Statement of Net Position 3 879,732

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES--

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

REVENUES:
Property Taxes (Including Penalty & Interest)
Franchise Taxes
Sales Tax
Library Revenue
RV Storage
Municipal Court
Permits

Leases

Grant Revenues
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Govemment
Operations
City Court
Public Safety - Police Department
Public Safety - Fire Department
Public Works - Street Department
Library
Emergency Operations
Principat on Long-Term Debt
Interest on Long-Term Deabt
Capital Qutlay

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Proceeds from Right to Use Leased Assels

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance—Beginning of Year

Eund Balance-End of Year

EXHIBIT C-2
Total
General Governmental
Fund Funds

$ 869,305 $ 869,305
41,072 41,072
22,967 22,967
7.318 7,318
15,590 15,590
5,695 5,695
11,425 11,425
6,544 6,544
55,754 55,754
58,222 58.222
1,093,892 1,093,892
415,512 415,512
167,859 167,859
4778 4778
363,089 363,089
432,332 432,332
185,552 185,552
35,679 35,679
4,883 4,883
4,598 4,598
602 602
1,614,884 1,614,884

(520,992) (520,992}
248,062 248,062
290,440 290,440
538,502 538,502
17,510 17,510
105,531 105,531
$ 123,041 % 123,041

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-3

TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Net Change in Fund Balances -- Total Governmental Funds ] 17,510

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
("SOA"} are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their usef
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital outlays duri
the current period. 451,995

The depreciation of capital asseis is not reported in the funds. This is the amou
of current depreciation on these assets. (186,705)

Certain property tax revenues are unavailable in the funds. These are the amounts
that have not been collected and are therefore do not provide current financi
resources. This is the amount that these accounts have changed during the current
period. (6,277)

Right to use lease proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net positio (290,440)

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but is a
reduction of long-term debt in the statement of net position. This amount is the total
debt principal repaid for bonded indebtednes: 4 598

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.
Change in accrued interest expense (5,040)
Change in pension expense 53,662
Change in OPEB expense {3,155)
Change in accrued vacation payable (380)
45,087

Change in Net Positicn -- Statement of Activities $ 35,768

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of this statement



TOWN OF RANSCOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

September 30, 2022

Business-Type Aclivities

Enterprise Funds

Water, Sewer, and

Sanitation Fund Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash in Bank $ 1,633,950 $ $.633,950
Cash in Bank - Restricted 4 085,824 4,085,824
Accounts Receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectable ($16.342) 132,734 132,734
Total Current Assets 5.852.508 5.852 508
Noncurrent Assels:
Land 25,551 25,551
Construction in Progress 457,249 457,249
Buildings and Improvements, net 278,625 278,625
Water & Sewer System, net 2.081,486 2,081,486
Vehicles, Machinery, Fumiture & Fixtures, net 59,852 59.852
Tolal Nongurrent Assets 2,902,763 2.802.763
JOTAL ASSETS $ 8.755.271 $ 8755271
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows - Pension 14,357 14,357
Deferred Outflows - OPEB 1,974 1,974
JOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES  § 16,331 3 16.331
LIABILITIES & NET POSITION
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 110,086 $ 110,086
Accrued Interest Payable 12,472 12,472
Nontument Liabilities
Accrued Compensation Payable 1,084 1.084
Customer Deposits 45,390 45,390
Net Pension Liability 65,697 65,597
Net OPEB Liabiiity 7.687 7.687
Due within one year 130,000 130,000
Oue in more than one year 4,575,000 4,575.000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4.947.316 4.947.316
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows - Grant Funds 279,062 279.062
Deferred Inflows - Pensicn 37.588 37,588
Deferred Inflows - OPEB 733 733
JOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES  § 317,383 $ 317.383
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,368,155 2,368,155
Restricted for debt service 133,183 133,183
Unrestricted 1,005,565 1.005.565
TOTAL NET POSITION 3 3.506.903 $ 3.506.803

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-1
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EXHIBIT D-2
TOWN OF RANSCM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION--
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022
Business-Type Activilies
u Enterprise Funds o
Water, Sewer, and
Sanitation Fund Total
OCperating Revenues
Water Revenue $ 769,123 $ 769,123
Sewer Revenue 446,665 446,665
Sanitation Revenue 153,589 153,589
Reconnect and Late Fees 16,788 16,788
Total Operating Revenues . 1,386,165 1,386,165
Operatling Expenses
Water Purchases 441,790 441,790
Solid Wasie Collection Contract 118,709 118,709
Employee Expense 149,693 149,693
Utilities 51,178 51,178
Chemicals 5612 5612
Supplies, Repairs and Maintenance 67,971 67.971
Fees, Permits, Inspections 3,095 3,095
Depreciation 123,739 123,739
Lab Charges 5,275 5275
Mosquite Spraying 8,242 8,242
Total Operating Expenses 975,304 975,304
Operating Income {Loss) Before
Operating Transfers 410,861 410,861
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Ad Valorem Tax Receipls 85,206 95,206
Insurance Recoveries 30,769 30,769
Interest income 25,831 2583
Interest Expense (100,429) (100,429)
Bond Issuance Cosls and Fees {600) {600}
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 50,777 50,777
Transfers and Capital Contributions:
Transfers In (Out) (248,062) (248,062)
Total Transfers and Capital Contributions (248,062) {248,062)
Net Income (Loss) 213,576 213,576
NET POSITICN
Net Position, Beginning of Year 3,293,327 3,293,327
Net Position, End of Year 3,506,903 3,506,903

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



TOWN QOF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Cash FI frorn rating Activities
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Suppliers

Payments to Employees

N h Provi ed ratin
Aclivilies
ash Flows from Non- ital Financing Activites,

Insurance Recoveries
Operating Transfers
Net Cash Provided Non- ital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital & Related Financing Acliviles:
Ad Valorem Tax Receipts

Acquisition of Fixed Assets
Capital Contributions
Cost of Dett Issuance
Principal Payments on Dett Acquired for Fixed Assets
Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt
N h Provi d} by Capital
Related Financing Activites

ash Flows from Investin ivilies:
Interest Income

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents--Beginning of Year

Reconcitiaton of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss}
Adjustments to Reconcile to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation
{Increase) Decrease in Net Pension Assel/Liability
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Inflows/Outflows Pensions
(Increase) Decrease in Net OPEB Asset/Liability
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Inflows/Cutfiows OPEB
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) by QOperating
Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Water, Sewer, and

Sanitation Fund __Totat

3 1,398,821 $ 1,398,821
(647 ,498) (647,498)
{163,645) {163,645)
587678 587,678
30,769 30.769
{248.062) {248.062)
(217,293} (217.293)
95,206 95 206
{703,836) (703,836)
279,062 279.062
(600} (600)
(130.000) (130.000)
(100,647} (100,647)
{560,815) (560.815)
25,830 25.830
25,830 25,830
(164 600) {164,600}
5,884,374 5,884,374
5719.774 5,719,774
410,861 410,861
123,739 123,738
{33,573) {33,573)
18,390 18,390
1,102 1,102
{356} (356)
10,556 10,556
56,959 56,959
587,678 587,678

22~

EXHIBIT D-3
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EXHIBIT E-1

TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
September 30, 2022

457(b)
Deferred
Compensation
Plan
ASSETS:
Current Investments 3 52,094
TOTAL ASSETS $ 52,094
LIABILITIES:
None $ -
TOTAL LIABILITIES -
NET POSITION:
Restricted for;
Pension Benefits $ 52,094
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 52,094

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E-2

TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

457(b)
Deferred
Compensation
Plan
ADDITIONS:
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair
Value of Investments $ (17,473)
Contributions -
Total Additions (17,473)
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits 26,453
Administrative Expenses 405
Total Deductions 26,858
Net Increase (Decrease) in
Fiduciary Net Position (44,331)
Net Position - Beginning, as restated 96,425
Net Position - Ending $ 52,094

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2022

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Town of Ransom Canyon, Texas operates under a Council-Manager form of government
and provides the following services: public safety (police and fire protection), streets,
sanitation, public improvements (water and sewer systems), library, planning and zoning, and
general administrative services. Volunteers staff the fire and ambulance services.

The basic financial statements of the Town of Ransom Canyon have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
("GAAP") applicable to governmental units. Generally accepted accounting principles for local
governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board ("GASB") and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) in the
publication entitled Audits of State and Local Governmental Units and by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (when applicable). GASB is the accepted standard setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The City's
reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB)
pronouncements.

1. The Reporting Entity

The Town of Ransom Canyon is a general law type-A municipality governed by an elected
mayor and a five-member City Council who appoints a City Manager. The accompanying
basic financial statements comply with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14, “The
Financial Reporting Entity” (as amended by GASB Statement No. 39) in that the financial
statements include all organizations, activities, functions and component units for which
the City is financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment
of a voting majority of a legally separate organization's governing body and either (1) the
City's ability to impose its will over the organization, or (2) the potential that the
organization will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the City.

a. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities include the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have
been made to minimize the over-reporting of internal activities. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or
in part by fees charged to external parties.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 2
September 30, 2022

Note A; Summary of Significant Accounting Polices (Continued)

3. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the different business-type activities of the City and for each
function of the City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. The City does not allocate indirect expenses in
the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges
paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues,
including all of taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about
the City's funds, with separate statements presented for each fund category. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each
displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated
and reported as nonmajor funds.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: This is the primary operating fund of the City. It accounts for ali
financial resources of the City except those required to be accounted for in another
fund,

In addition, the City reports the following fund types:

Fiduciary Funds:

Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds: These funds are used to report
resources that are required to be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries of
defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, other postemployment
benefit plans, or other employee benefit plans. The District uses this fund type to
report its 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan, a defined contribution pension plan
for its employees.

Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements. However,
because their assets are held in a trustee or custodial capacity and are therefore not
available to support the District programs, these funds are not included in the
government-wide statements.

Enterprise Funds: Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where
the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation)
of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed
or recovered primarily through user charges or (b) where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or
net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes. Operating revenues, such as charges for services,
result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 3
September 30, 2022

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies--Continued

Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially
equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings,
result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide financial
statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred,
regardiess of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in
which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value
in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitiements, and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. Revenues from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized
in the fiscatl year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available. The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be
available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. Revenues from
local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues
received from the State are recognized under susceptible-to-accrual concept.
Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they
are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded
as earned, since they are both measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded
when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general
long-term debt, claims, and judgments, and compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital assets
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds from
general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

The Proprietary Fund Types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus utilizing the accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting
recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they are earned and become
measurable and expenses in the accounting period in which they are incurred and
become measurable. The fund equity is segregated into net investment in capital
assets, restricted net position, and unrestricted net position.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 4
September 30, 2022

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

C.

Fund Balance Classification

Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed
on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or faws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The City currently has $133,183 restricted
for debt service.

Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund.
When the City incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted
resources may be used, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then

unrestricted resources.

Financial Statement Amounts

a. Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liguid
investments purchased with maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments for the City are reported at fair value.
b. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior
January 1% for all real and business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E,
Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent
if not paid before February 15t of the year following the year in which imposed. On
January 1% of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all
taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are
considered available when they become due or past due and receivable within the
current period.

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General Fund are based upon
historical experience in collecting property taxes. As of September 30, 2022, the
amount deemed uncollectible by this estimate was $999. Uncollectible personal
property taxes are periodically reviewed and written off, but the City is prohibited from
writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas
Legislature.
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Note A; Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

C.

Inventories and Prepaid items

The City records purchases of supplies as expenditures, utilizing the purchase method
of accounting for inventory.

Certain payments to vendors reflect cost abplicable to future periods and are recerded
as prepaid items.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical
cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the
date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the assets’ lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $5,000
is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure 30
Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Vehicles 5-15
Office Equipment and Furniture 3-15
Computer Equipment 3

Receivable and Payable Balances

The City believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided
in the financial statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by
aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided which disaggregates those
balances.

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one
year of the period end.

Compensated Absences

Fuli-time, permanent employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts to
specified maximums depending on tenure with the City. The City's policy allows full
time, permanent employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused
vacation leave. Full time, permanent employees are allowed to accrue up to twenty
days of sick leave. It is the City's policy to not pay employees for unused sick leave
upon separation of service from the City. For the year ended September 30, 2022
compensated absences relating to vacation time amounted to $8,041.
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Note A; Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

g.

Interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers
between funds. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate
and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at
market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses.
Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting
fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers In and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single
“Transfers” line on the government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund
receivables and payables are netted and presented as a single “Internal Balances” line of
the government-wide statement of net position.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of
management’s estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to
a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) untit then. ltems reported as deferred outflows of resources are
as follows:

Deferred charges related to TMRS retirement $ 70,625
Deferred charges related to TMRS OPEB $ 10,798

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The District currently has one type of item which arises only
under the modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category.
Uncollected property taxes which are assumed collectible are reported in this category
on the balance sheet for governmental funds. Items reported as deferred inflows of
resources are as follows:

Deferred property tax revenues $ 1,362
Deferred Grant Funds $ 279,062
Deferred charges related to TMRS retirement $ 200,498

Deferred charges related to TMRS OPEB $4,332
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J-

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability/asset, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information
about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and
additions to/deductions from TMRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are
recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when
contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Other Post Employment Benefits

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the
Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions
to/deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized
in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions
are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Note B: Compliance and Accountability

1.

Fair Value Measurements

The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board {(GASB) Statement No.
72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, which defines fair value as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction.
Fair value accounting requires characterization of the inputs used to measure fair value
into a three-level fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 inputs are based on unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets or
liabilities in an active market the entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 inputs are observable inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from sources
independent from the entity.

Level 3 inputs are observable inputs that reflect the entity’s own assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based
on the best information available.
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Note B: Compliance and Accountability (continued)

1.

Note C:

Fair Value Measurements
There are three general valuation techniques that may be used to measure fair value:

Market approach — uses prices generated by market transactions involving identical or
comparable assets or liabilities.

Cost approach — uses the amount that currently would be required to replace the
service capacity of an asset (replacement cost).

Income approach — uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to present
amounts based on current market expectations.

Deposits and Investments

Under Texas state law, the City's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the
terms of a depository contract. The depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with
the City's agent bank approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient to protect City funds
on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is
waived only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC") insurance.

Cash Deposits
At September 30, 2022, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits (cash, certificates of deposit,

and interest bearing saving accounts included in temporary investments) was $1,921,190 and
the bank balance was $1,931,394. The City’s cash deposits at September 30 and throughout
the year were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City’s
agent bank in the City’s name.

Investments

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act, to
adopt, implement, and publicize and investment policy. That policy must address the following
areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2} portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments,
(4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity
of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the
stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, and (9) bid
solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit.

The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act’) requires an annual audit of investment practices.
Audit procedures in this area conducted as a part of the audit of the general purpose financial
statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, management reports an
establishment of appropriate policies, the City adhered to the requirements of the Act.
Additionally, investment practices of the City were in accordance with local policies.
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The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the City. These include,
with certain restrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies, and the State of
Texas, (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) securities lending
program, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8)
investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and (10) commercial paper.

At September 30, 2022, the City held $3,940,170 in Morgan Stanley Treasury Securities
Portfolio (MSILF). These funds are restricted for the construction of the new sewer waste
water treatment plant and water improvements. MSILF is rated AAAm by S&P and has a
weighted average maturity of less than 60 days.

At September 30, 2022, the City held $52,094 in Nationwide's Large Cap Growth Fund. The
City is the fiduciary of these funds held for employees in the 457b defined contribution
retirement plan. This mutual fund is valued at fair value using Level 2 inputs.

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the City was exposed to the
following specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related
disclosures:

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized agencies are designed
to give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the City was not significantly exposed to
credit risk.

b. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository
insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution’s trust department or agent but not in the City's name. Investment securities
are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in
the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty's
trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.

At year end, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.
¢. Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a
single issuer. At year end, the City was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. At year end, the City was not exposed to interest rate risk.
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e. Foreign Currency Risk
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This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
At year end, the City was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Investment Accounting Policy

The City’s general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating interest-
earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest-earning
investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is
significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is
reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists
which guarantees a higher value. The term “short-term” refers to investments which have a remaining
term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating” means that the investment's

value does not vary with market interest rate changes.
examples of nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts.

Note D: Capital Assels

Governmental
Activities:

Land

Buildings

Streets & Infrastructure
Improvements
Furniture & Equipment
Right to Use Equipment
Total Capital Assets

Less Accumulated

Depreciation:

Buildings

Streets & Infrastructure

Improvements

Furniture & Equipment

Right to Use Equipment

Total Accumulated
Depreciation

Net Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the period ended September 30, 2022, was as follows:

Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are

Balance Deletions/ Balance
10-1-21 Additions Reclassifications 9-30-22
$ 46,230 - - $ 46,230
634,277 - - 634,277
3,063,441 86,062 - 3,139,503
744,884 - - 744 884
1,217,524 40,208 - 1,257,732
20615 325,726 - 346,341
$5716,971 $ 451,996 - $ 6,168,967
$ 200,693 $ 16,760 $ - $ 217,453
2,482,706 65,139 - 2,647,845
683,960 30,621 - 714,581
1,122,389 44 904 - 1,167,293
- 29,280 - 29,280
$ 4489748 $ 186,704 $ = $ 4676452
$ 1,227,223 $ 265,292 ¥ - $ 1,492,515
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Business-Type

Activities:

Land

Construction in Progress
Buildings&
Improvements

Water & Sewer System

Furniture & Equipment

Total Capital Assets

Less Accumulated

Depreciation:

Buildings&
improvements

Water & Sewer System

Furniture & Equipment

Total Accumulated
Depreciation

Net Capital Assets

-35-

Balance Deletions/ Balance
10-1-21 Additions Reclassifications 9-30-22

3 S $ 25,651 % - $ 25,551
546,157 329,810 (418,718) 457,249
318,428 - - 318,428
4,865,149 292,087 418,718 5,675,954
23,039 56,388 - 79,427

$ 5752773 $ 703.836 3 = $ 6.456.609
$ 31,843 $ 7,960 - $ 39.803
3,389,049 105,419 - 3,494 468
9216 10,359 - 19,5675
$ 3,430,108 $ 123,738 3 - $ 3,553,846
$2322665 $580008 § - 820902763

Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:

General Government
Public Safety - Police
Public Safety - Fire
Public Works - Streets
Emergency Operations
Library

Water, Sewer and Sanitation

Note E: Long-Term Obligations

$ 21,539
18,487
38,560

105,486
1,902
730
123,738

e

$ 310,442

Short term loans are accounted for through the applicable fund. General Fund proceeds from
loans (except those issued and retired during the current year) are shown in the financial
statements as Other Resources and principal payments as Other Uses. Enterprise fund loans
are shown in the appropriate fund.
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At September 30, 2022 debt outstanding consisted of the following individual issues:

Combination Tax and Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020 issued for
$4,835,000 with interest rates ranging from 1.34% to 2.51%. Principal and interest payments
are due on February 15 and August 15 each year with the first payment due August 15, 2021
and the last payment due February 1§, 2050.

The Certificates of Obligation are direct obligations issued on a pledge of the general taxing
power and the revenues of the Enterprise Fund for the payment of the debt obligations of the
City. These Bonds require the City to compute, at the time other taxes are levied, the rate of
tax required to provide (in each year certificates of obligation are outstanding) funds to pay
interest and principal at maturity for any amounts not paid from the revenues of the Enterprise
Fund. These Bonds are secured both by a pledge of ad valorem taxes levied on all taxable
property within the City and by a lien on and pledge of revenues to be generated by the
Enterprise Fund.

For the year ended September 30, 2022 the City paid interest in the amount of $100,647 with
the accrual basis interest expense being $100,429 on the Certificates of Obligation.

1. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended September 30, 2022 are as follows:

Due

Beginning Ending Within
Governmental Balance Increases Decrease Balance One Year
Activities:
Leases $ 20615 $ 290,440 $ 4,598 $ 306457 $ 30,734
Compensated Absences 6,575 382 - 6,957
Net Pension Liability 418634 - 135,272 283362
Net OPEB Liability 29 466 4633 146 33953 -
Total governmenta! activities § 475290 § 295455 $140.016 £ 630729 $30734

Due

Beginning Ending Within
Business-Type Balance Increases Decrease Balance One Year
Activities:
Certificates of Obligation $ 4,835,000 $ - $ 130,000 $ 4,705,000 $ 130,000
Compensated Absences 5399 485 - 1,084 -
Net Pension Liability 99,170 - 33573 65,597
Net OPESB Liability 6,585 1,138 36 7,687 -
Total governmental activities §4.941,354 § 1623 $.163,600 $4.779.368 £130000
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2. Debt service requirements on Certificates of Obligation at September 30, 2022, are as follows:

Business-Type Activities

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 130,000 $ 98,898 $ 228,898
2024 130,000 97,130 227,130
2025 135,000 95,288 230,288
2026 135,000 93,357 228,357
2027 135,000 91,339 226,339
2028-2032 715,000 421,140 1,136,140
2033-2037 790,000 347,703 1,137,703
2038-2042 885,000 257,019 1,142,019
2043-2047 990,000 145,382 1,135,382
2048-2050 660,000 25100 685,100

$ 4,705,000 5 1672356 $.6,377.356

3. Leases

The City entered into a lease contract on a copier in September 2021. This is a 51 month lease
with required payments of $433 per month.

The City entered into a lease-purchase agreement on a fire truck in fiscal year 2022. Thisis a
10 year lease with an effective interest rate of 2.45%.

The future payments required for leases at September 30, 2022 are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending Sepfember 30 Principai Interest Total

2023 $ 30,734 $ 7.566 $ 38,300
2024 31,527 6,773 38,300
2025 32,341 5,059 38,300
2026 29,234 5,166 34,400
2027 28,625 4,474 33,099
2028-2032 153,996 11,501 165,497

& 306457 841439 & 347,896

Note F: Agreement with Other Government

The Town of Ransom Canyon has an agreement with Lubbock County Water Control and
Improvement District No. 1 (a neighboring local government). The Town of Ransom Canyon
has issued debt and is constructing a new sewer plant which is also used by LCWCID No. 1.
The agreement defines the terms by which LCWCID No. 1 is paying its pro rata share, based
on monthly usage, of the operating cost, construction costs, financing cost, equipment, interest,
permits and inspections, and upgrades to the existing plant. LCWCID No. 1 paid $183,750 for
its usage of sewer facilities in the year ended September 30, 2022,
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Plan Description

The Town of Ransom Canyon participates as one of 901 plans in the defined benefit cash-
balance plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is a
statewide public retirement plan created by the State of Texas and administered in
accordance with the Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle G (TMRS Act) as an agent
multiple-employer retirement system for employees of Texas participating cities. The TMRS
Act places the administration and management of TMRS with a six-member Board of
Trustees (Board) appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Texas
Senate. TMRS does not receive any funding from the State of Texas. TMRS issues a
publicly available Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report) that can be
obtained at www. tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.

Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by
the governing body of the city, within the options available in the state statutes governing
TMRS.

At retirement, the member's benefit is calculated based on the sum of the member's
contributions with interest, the city-financed monetary credits with interest, and their age at
retirement and other actuarial factors. The retiring member may select one of seven monthly
benefit payment options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as
a lump sum distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot
exceed 75% of the total member contributions and interest.

Plan Year 2021  Plan Year 2020

Employee deposit rate 6.0% 6.0%
Matching ratio (City to employee) 1.5t0 1 1.5t0 1
Years required for vesting 5 5
Service retirement eligibility

(expressed as age / years of service) 60/5, 0,20 60/5, 0,20
Updated Service Credit 100% 100%

Annuity Increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI (% of CPI
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Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2021 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 5
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 8
Active employees 11
Total 24

Contributions

Member confribution rates in TMRS are either 5%, 6% or 7% of the Member's total
compensation, and the city matching ratios are either 1:1(1to 1), 1.5:1 (1-1/2to 1) or 2:1 (2
to 1), both as adopted by the governing body of the city. Under the state law governing
TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the
Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The city's contribution rate is based on the
liabilities created from the benefit plan options selected by the city and any changes in
benefits or actual experience over time.

Employees for the Town of Ransom Canon were required to contribute 6% of their annual
compensation during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the Town of Ransom Canyon
were 14.39% and 14.29% in calendar years 2021 and 2022, respectively. The City's
contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2022 were $84,355, and were equal
to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liability

The City's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2021, and the Total
Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions:
The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year
Overall payroll growth 2,75% per year, adjusted down for population declines, if any
Investment Rate of Return 6.73% net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
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Salary increases are based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members
are based on the PUB (10) mortality tables with the Public Safety table used for males and
the General Employee table used for females. Mortality rates for healthy retirees and
beneficiaries are based on the Gender-distinct 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas mortality
tables. The rates for actives, healthy retirees and beneficiaries are projected on a fully
generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled
annuitants, the same mortality tables for healthy retirees are used with a 4-year set-forward
for males and a 3-year set-forward for females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3.0% minimum
mortality rate is applied, for males and females respectively, to reflect the impairment for
younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational
basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements subject to the floor.

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the
experience of TMRS over the four-year period from December 31, 2014 to December 31,
2018. They were adopted in 2019 and first used in the December 31, 2019 actuarial
valuation. The post-retirement mortality assumption for Annuity Purchase Rates (APRs) is
based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated
December 31, 2013. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on
both capital appreciation as well as the production of income in order to satisfy the short-term
and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
{expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of
real rates of return for each major asset class in fiscal year 2022 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term Expected

Target Real Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation (Arithmetic)
Global Equity 35.00% 7.55%
Core Fixed Income 6.00% 2.00%
Non-Core Fixed Income 20.00% 5.68%
Other Public and Private 12.00% 7.22%
Reai Estate 12.00% 6.85%
Hedge Funds 5.00% 5.35%
Private Equity 10.00% 10.00%

Total 100.00%
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member and employer
contributions will be made at the rates specified in statute, Based on that assumption, the
pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current active and inactive members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.

Change in the Net Pension Liability

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

() (b) (a)-(b)
Balance at 12/31/20 $ 239,116 $ 1,873,312 § 517,804
Changes for the year:
Service cost 68,867 68,867
Interest 162,511 162,511
Change of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience (32,134) (32,134)
Changes of assumptions -
Contributions - employer 87,714 (87,714}
Contributions - employee 36,470 (36,470)
Net investment income 245,027 (245,027)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contribulions (35,955) (35,955) -
Administrative expense (1,130) 1,130
Other changes 8 (8)
Net changes 163.289 332,134 (168.845)
Balance at 12/31/21 $ 2,554,405 § 2205446 § 348,959

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate
of 6.75%, as well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher
(7.75%) than the current rate:

1%% Decrease in 1% [ncrease in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
{3.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)

City's net pension liability  $ 654,314 % 348959 % 91.546
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Town of Ransorn Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 18
September 30, 2022

Note G: TMRS-Pension Plan {continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the
Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position, by Participating City. That report may be
obtained at www.tmrs.com.

Pension Expense and Deferred Quiflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2022, the city recognized pension expense of $(126,058).

At September 30, 2022, the city reported deferred cutflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual
economic experience S 2,529 § 68,075
Changes in actuarial assumptions s 7,920 § 7,333
Difference between projected and actual
investment earnings $ - 8 125,090
Contributions subsequent to the measure
date December 31, 2021 $ 60,176 § -

Total $ 70,625 % 200,498

$2,695 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year ended Dec 31:

2022 § (38,7700
2023 {64,581)
2024 {42,095)
2025 (37,733)
2026 (6,870)
Thereafter -

Total $ (190,049)



-43-

TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 19
September 30, 2022

Note H: Supplemental Death Benefits Plan

1.

Plan Description

The City participates in the single-employer unfunded defined benefit group-term life
insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as
the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to
provide group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The
City may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by
adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following
January 1. The SDBF had 783 participating cities on December 31, 2021.

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the fiduciary net position of the Supplemental Death Benefits
Fund is available in the separately-issued TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
That report may be obtained on the Internet at http://www.tmrs.com or by writing to
TMRS at P.O. Box 149153, Austin, TX 78714-9153.

Benefits Provided

The death benefit for active Members provides a lump-sum payment approximately
equal to the Member's annual salary (calculated based on the Members's actual
earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death). The death benefit for
retirees is considered an “other post-employment benefit” (*OPEB") and is a fixed
amount of $7,500. The obligations of this plan are payable only from the SDBF and are
not an obligation of the Pension Trust Fund. As the SDBF covers both active and retiree
participants, with no segregation of assets, the SDBF is considered to be an unfunded
OPEB plan (i.e. no assets are accumulated).

At the December 31, 2021 valuation and measurement date, the following employees
were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 5
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits ]
Active employees il
Total 17
Contributions

The City contributes to the SDBF monthly based on the covered payroll of employee
members at an actuarially determined rate. There is a one-year delay between the
actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the city’'s contribution rate and the
calendar year when the rate goes into effect.

TMRS pools the SDBF contributions with those of the Pension Trust Fund for investment
purposes. The SDBF’s funding policy assures that adequate resources are available to
meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year. The SDBF is a pay-as-you-go
fund, and any excess contributions are available for future SDBF benefits.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 20
September 30, 2022

Note H: Supplemental Death Benefits Plan (continued)

Contribution Rates

[
(=3
N
pay
N
o
N
N

City 0.20% 0.21%

Current Fiscal Year Employer Contributions $1,218

5.  Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined

using the following actuarial assumptions:

Summary of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method

Inflation

Salary increases

Discount Rate*

Retirees’ share of benefit-related costs
Administrative expenses

Mortality rates — service retirees

Mortality rates — disabled retirees

December 31, 2021

Entry Age Normal

2.50%

3.50% to 11.5% including inflation
1.84%"

$0

All administrative expenses are paid
through the Pension Trust and
accounted for under reporting
requirements under GASB Statement
No. 68

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas
Mortality Tables. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis
with scale UMP.

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas
Mortality Tables with a 4 year set-
forward for males and a 3 year set-
forward for females. In addition, a
3.5% and 3% minimum mortality rate
will be applied to reflect the
impairment for younger members who
become disabled for males and
females, respectively. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis
by Scale UMP to account for future
mortality improvements subject to the
fioor.

*The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index's “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as
of December 31, 2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2021 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period December 31, 2014 to December 31,

2018.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 21
September 30, 2022

Note H: Supplemental Death Benefits Plan (continued)

8.

Discount Rate

As of December 31, 2021, the discount rate used in the development of the Total OPEB
Liability was 1.84% compared to 2.00% as of December 31, 2020. In accordance with
GASB No. 75, paragraph 155, the applicable discount rate for an unfunded OFEB is
based on an index of tax exempt 20-year municipal bond rates rated as AA or higher.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions are made at the actuarially determined rates. Based on those
assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position was projected to not be able fo
make all future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the municipal
bond rate was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total OFPEB liability. The source of the municipal bond rate was Fixed-income municipal
bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds
as reported in Fidelity Index's “20-year Municipal GO AA Index” as of December 31,
2021.

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following schedule shows the impact of the Total OPEB Liability if the discount rate used
was 1% less than and 1% greater than the discount rate that was used (3.71%} in measuring
the Total OPEB Liability.

1% Decrease in Discount Rate 1% Increase in
Discount Rate (0.84%) (1.84%) Discount Rate (2.84%)
Total OPEB Liability $ 50,890 $ 41,640 $ 34,348

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
inflows of Resources Related to OPEBs

At September 30, 2022, the City reported a liability of $41,640 for total OPEB liability.
The total OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2021 by an actuarial
valuation as of that date,

Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation — The following were changes to the
actuarial assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the Total OPEB
liability since the prior measurement period:

As of December 31, 2021, the discount rate used in the development of the Total OPEB
Liability was 1.84% compared to 2.00% as of December 31, 2020. Beginning with the
December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation, mortality rates are based on the 2019 Municipal
Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables. Prior to the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation,
mortality rates were based on the RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar
Adjustment.

For the year ended September 30, 2022, the City recognized OPEB expense of $5,119.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 22
September 30, 2022

Note H: Supplemental Death Benefits Plan (continued)

Change in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability
(a)
Balance at 12/31,/20 $ 36,051
Changes for the year:
Service cost 2,127
Interest 740
Change of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience 1,646
Changes of assumptions 1,258
Benefit payments. including refunds of employee contributions (182)
Other changes -
Net changes 5,589
Balance at 12/31/21 b 41,640

At September 30, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

actuarial experiences $ 1417 $ 3491
Changes in actuarial assumptions $ 8500 $ 841
Difference between projected and actual

Investment earnings $ S $ -
Changes in proportion and difference between

The employer’s contributions and the
Proportionate share of contributions = =
Total as of Dec. 31, 2021 measurement date $ 0,017 $ 4,332
Contributions paid to TRS subsequent to the

measurement date 3 881 % -

Total as of fiscal year-end $ 10,798 $ 4332

The net amounts of the employer's balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended December 31: OPEB Expense Amount

2022 $1176
2023 1,161
2024 879
2025 1,274
2026 608
Thereafter 487
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OF RANSOM CANYON

Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 23
September 30, 2022

Note |

Interfund Transfers

Note J:

Note K:

interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Fund Transfers In Transfers Qut

General Fund:
Proprietary Fund 248 062 -

—_—

Total General Fund - -

Proprietary Fund:

General Fund - 248,062
Total $ 248,062 $..248.062

These interfund transfers represent cash flow transfers from the proprietary fund to the
general fund in the normal course of business.

Litigation

There was no litigation pending or in progress against the City at September 30, 2022.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City
participates in a public entity risk pool managed by the Texas Municipal League whereby the
risk is pooled with other entities. Participation in this pool allows the City to share liability,
crime, motor vehicle and property damage risks. The Intergovernmental Risk Pool (the Pool)
allows the City to manage risk by purchasing property, liability, and workers compensation
insurance through the Texas Municipal League. The Pool provides property, liability and
workers’ compensation coverage for certain governmental entities of the State of Texas.
Member entities include municipalities, housing authorities, councils of governments, hospital
districts, water districts and tax appraisal districts. The Pool consists of five separate funds:
the Workers' Compensation Fund, the Liability Fund, the Property Fund, the Reinsurance Fund
and the Stability Fund. The financial results of these coverages are accounted for in separate
funds by the Pool.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 24
September 30, 2022

Note L: Deferred Compensation Plan

The Town of Ransom Canyon provides a defined contribution pension plan governed by IRC
section 457(b) to its employees. These funds are held by the City in a fiduciary capacity for
the benefit of contributing employees. Employees voluntarily elect to contribute to the 457(b)

plan by electing to have contributions deducted from pay. The City does not contribute to this
plan.

Note M: Prior Period Adjustment

The beginning net position of the 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan, a Fiduciary Fund, was
increased by $96,425. This increase is the result of reporting this plan as fiduciary fund in
the City’s financial statements.

457(b)
Deferred
Compensation Plan
Net position — September 30, 2021, as previously reported $ o
Addition to Fiduciary Funds 96,425

Net position — September 30, 2021, as restated $ 96425
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Revenues

Property Taxes (including Penalty and Interest)

Franchise Taxes
Sales Tax
Library Revenue
RV Storage
Municipal Court
Permits

Leases

Grant Revenues
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current

General Government
Operations
City Court
Public Safety - Police Department
Public Safety - Fire Department
Public Works - Street Department
Library
Emergency Operations

Principal on Long-Term Debt

Interest on Long-Term Debt

Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses})
Operating Transfers In
Proceeds from Right to Use Leased Assets

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

ExiQver {(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

-49-

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Eund Balance. End of Year

EXHIBIT F-1
(General Fund
Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
858,215 § 869,305 $ 11,090
27,400 41,072 13,672
14,000 22,967 8,967
6,500 7.318 818
10,000 15,590 5,590
1,500 5,695 4,195

14,700 11,425 (3,275)
4,900 6,544 1,644
50,300 55,754 5,454
47,380 58,222 10,842
1,034,895 1,093,892 58,997
438,401 415,512 22,889
175,112 167,859 7.253
8,200 4778 4,422
364,269 363,089 1,180
440,669 432,332 8,337
186,073 185,552 521
36,018 35,679 339
27,875 4,883 22,992
4,598 4,598 -
602 602 -
1,682,817 1,614,584 67,933

357,482 248,062 (109,420)
290,440 290,440 -

647,922 538,502 (109,420)
- 17,510 17,510
105,531 105,531 -
105,531 $ 123,041 $ 17,510
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
September 30, 2022

Schedule of Contributions for Pensions — TMRS

Valuation Date:

Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as
of December 31 and become effective in January, 13
months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period N/A

Asset Valuation Method 10 year smoothed market; 12% soft corridor

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.50% to 11.5% including inflation

investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the

City’s plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2019
valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period
2014-2018

Mortality Post-retirement. 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas
Mortality Tables. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis with scale UMP.
Pre-retirement: PUB{10) mortality tables, with the Public
Safety table used for males and the General Employee
table used for females. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis with scale UMP.

Other Information:
Notes There were no benefit changes during the year.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON
Ransom Canyon, Texas

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
September 30, 2022

Schedule of Contributions for OPEB — TMRS

Valuation Date:

Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as
of December 31 and become effective in January, 13
months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Asset Valuation For purposes of calculating the Total OPEB Liability, the
plan is considered to be unfunded and therefore no assets
are accumulated for OPEB.

Inflation 2.5%

Salary Increases 3.50% to 11.5% including inflation

Discount Rate” 1.84%

Retirees’ share of benefit-related costs 0%

Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension

Trust and accounted for under reporting requirements
under GASE Statement No. 68

Mortality rates — service retirees 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale
UMP.

Mortality rates — disabled retirees 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4

year set-forward for males and a 3 year set-forward for
females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3% minimum mortality
rate will be applied to reflect the impairment for younger
members who become disabled for males and females,
respectively. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future
mortality improvements subject to the floor.

*The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as of
December 31, 2021.
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Terry & King, CPAs, P.C.

5707 114 Street
P.O. Box 93550 Randel J. Terry, CPA
Lubbock, TX 79493-3550 Ryan R. King, CPA

Telephone - {806) 698-8858 - Fax — (866) 288-6490

Independent Auditors’ Report

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
Town of Ransom Canyon, Texas

24 Lee Kitchens Dr.

Ransom Canyon, TX 79366-2200

Members of the City Council:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Ransom Canyon, Texas, as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Town of Ransom Canyon's basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated November 3, 2022,

Internal Contro! Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of
Ransom Canyon's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Ransom Canyon’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements wilt not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal conirol that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Ransom

Canyon's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

Terry & King, CPAs, P.C.
Lubbock, Texas
November 3, 2022



